CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2011

Prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards

(This is a translation from the official Romanian
version)

FONDUL

PROPRIETATEA

S.C. Fondul Proprietatea S.A.

™ e

FRANKLIN TEMPLETON
INVESTMENTS




S.C. FONDUL PROPRIETATEA S.A.

FONDUL PROPRIETATEA S.A.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2011

Prepared in accordance with International FinancialReporting Standards



S.C. FONDUL PROPRIETATEA S.A.

Contents:

Independent Auditor's RepOrt . . . .. ...t 1
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income. ... ................cceeee . ....3

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position....... . . ... ......... ... . coeeevo..... 4
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Sharehollexsty . . ........... ... ... ... .. 5

Consolidated Statement of Cash FIows . . . . ... ... e 7
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ... . ............. .t ee.... 8

S.C. Fondul Proprietatea S.A. Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011



= Deloitte Audit S.R.L.
e OI e Sos. Nicelae Titulescu nr. 4-8,
Intrarea de est, Etajul 3,
Sector 1, 011141, Bucuresti

Romania

Tel: +40 21 222 16 61
Fax: +40 21 222 16 60
wwnw.deloilte.ro

Reg. Com. J40/6775/1995
C.U.l. 7756924

To the shareholders of
Fondul Proprietatea S.A.
Bucharest, Romania

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Fondul
Proprietatea S.A. and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as of December 31, 2011, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in shareholders’ equity and statement of
cash flow for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3 Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurances about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

4 An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements, in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

5 We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide

a basis for our audit opinion.

Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu



Opinion

6 In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2011, and its financial performance
and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union.

Emphasis of matter

7 We draw attention to the fact that during 2011 a number of major economies around the
world have experienced strong volatility in the capital markets and severe restrictions in the
credit markets. As a consequence of the turmoil in capital and credit markets both globally
and in Romania, notwithstanding any potential economic stabilization measures that may be
put into place by the Romanian State, economic uncertainties arose surrounding the
continual availability and cost of credit for the Group’s counterparties, future development of
the markets and demand for goods and services they produce. The potential for economic
uncertainties to continue in the foreseeable future and, as a consequence, the potential that
assets of the Group may be not recovered at their carrying amount in the ordinary course of
business, and a corresponding impact on the Group’s profitability cannot be estimated
reliably as of the date of this report. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Matters

8 This report is made solely to the Group’s shareholders, as a body. Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the Group’s shareholders those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
Group and the Group's shareholders as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opinion we have formed.

For signature please refer to the
original Romanian version

Deloitte Audit S.R.L.
Bucharest, Romania
June 8, 2012

Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu



S.C. FONDUL PROPRIETATEA S.A.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
(all amounts are in RON unless otherwise stated)

Gross dividend income

Interest income

Reversal of impairment losses on divide
receivable

Reversal of impairment losses on disposed e«
investments

Impairment losses on receivables in respe
equity contributions

Impairment losses on equity investments
Impairment losses on dividends receivable
Gains on disposal of equity investments
Share of profit in associates (net of income tax)
Net foreign exchange gains /(losses)

Other operating income

Net operating income

Personnel expenses
Other operating expenses
Operating expense

Profit before tax

Income tax expense

Profit for the period

Other comprehensive income / (loss)

Net change in fair value of available-for-sale ¢y
investments

Income tax benefit/ (expense) on ot
comprehensive income

Total other comprehensive income/ (los

Total comprehensive income /(loss) for th
period

Basic and diluted earnings per shar

The financial statements were authorised for issu8& June 2012 by:

Oana Trta
as Legal Representative on behalf of

Year endec Year endec
Note 31 December 201 31 December 201
6 320,810,181 181,244,262
7 41,129,291 131,466,209
16 28,323,677 -
18 21,545,871 -
17 (10,001,304) -
18 (51,691,805) (29,299,487)
- (18,307)
8 8,799,778 -
5,858,482 440,338,615
9 700,842 (9,165,151)
10 12,187,358 1,016,631
1,127,662,371 715,582,772
(644,081) (4,068,409)
11 (54,243,301) (47,488,391)
(54,887,382) (51,556,800)
1,072,774,989 664,025,972
12 (472,220) (8,676,905)
1,072,302,76 655,349,06
(333,664,982) 319,865,072
12 53,386,398 (51,178,412)
(280,278,58¢ 268,686,66
792,024,185 924,035,727
0.08 0.05

Franklin Templeton Investment Management LimitedtéthKingdom Bucharest Branch
acting in the capacity of Sole Director of S.C. &onProprietatea S.A.

The notes on pages 8 to 49 are an integral panese financial statements.

S.C. Fondul Proprietatea S.A. Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011



S.C. FONDUL PROPRIETATEA S.A.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2011

(all amounts are in RON unless otherwise stated)

Asset:

Cash and current accounts
Deposits with banks
Treasury bills

Dividends receivable
Equity investments
Investment in associate
Deferred tax assets

Other assets
Total asset:

Liabilities
Payables in respect of equ
contributions

Other liabilities
Total liabilities

Equity

Share capital

Fair value reserve on available-i
sale financial assets

Other reserves

Treasury shares

Accumulated losses

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

Note

13
14
15
16
18
19
20
21

22
23

24

24
24
24

31 December 201

1,912,808
296,356,801
195,919,673

52,479,298
7,428,214,714
4,238,522,215

93,306,844

2,558,644

31 December 201

7,207,864
1,071,263,726
248,021,476
4,069,237
7,045,528,488
3,712,112,944
35,272,172
1,901,634

12,309,270,9¢

12,125,377,54

- 9,730,381
42,266,294 59,842,804
42,266,294 69,573,185

13,778,392,208

197,303,309
250,102,759
(120,268,583)

(1,838,524,990)

13,778,392,208

477,581,893
222,823,865

(2,422,993,610)

12,267,004,703

12,055,804,356

12,309,270,997

12,125,377,541

The notes on pages 8 to 49 are an integral panest financial statements.
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S.C. FONDUL PROPRIETATEA S.A.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’' EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2010
(all amounts are in RON unless otherwise stated)

Fair value reserve! Total attributable
on available-for-sale to the equity
Share capital financial assets Other reserves  Treasury shares Accuraied losses holders of the Fund
Balance at 31 December 20( 13,757,592,587 208,895,233 199,454,493 - (1,946,455,409) 12,219,486,904
Comprehensive income for the perio
Profit for the period - - - - 655,349,067 655,349,067

Other comprehensive incom

Net change in fair value of available-i

sale equity investments - 319,865,072 - - - 319,865,072
Share of income and expense recogn

directly in the equity of associates (net of

income tax) - - - 15,798,905 15,798,905

Income tax on income and expel

recognised directly in equ - (51,178,412) - - - (51,178,412)
Total other comprehensive income - 268,686,660 - - 15,798,905 284,485,565
Total comprehensive income for the

period - 268,686,660 - - 671,147,972 939,834,632

Transactions with owners, recordec

directly in equity

Transfers to other reserves - - 23,369,372 - (23,369,372) -
Increase of share cap 20,799,62 20,799,62
Dividends declared - - - (1,124,316,801)  (1,124,316,801)
Total transactions with owners recordec

directly in equity 20,799,621 - 23,369,372 - (1,147,686,173) (1,103,517,180)

Balance at 31 December 20: 13,778,392,2C 477,581,89 222,823,86 - (2,422,993,61( 12,055,804,35

The notes on pages 8 to 49 are an integral panest financial statements.
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S.C. FONDUL PROPRIETATEA S.A.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
(all amounts are in RON unless otherwise stated)

Fair value reserve: Total attributable
on available-for-sale Accumulated to the equity
Share capital financial asset: Other reserves  Treasury shares losse: holders of the Func
Balance at 31 December 20: 13,778,392,208 477,581,893 222,823,865 - (2,422,993,610)  12,055,804,356
Comprehensive income for the perio
Profit for the period - - - - 1,072,302,769 1,072,302,769

Other comprehensive incom

Net change in fair value of available-f

sale equity investmer - (333,664,982) - - - (333,664,982)
Share of income and expense recogn

directly in the equity of associates (net of

income tax) (27,826,207) (27,826,207)
Income tax on income and expel

recognised directly in equ - 53,386,398 - - - 53,386,398
Total other comprehensive incom - (280,278,584) - - (27,826,207) (308,104,791)
Total comprehensive income for the

period - (280,278,584) - - 1,044,476,562 764,197,978

Transactions with owners, recordec
directly in equity

Transfer to other reseves 27,278,894 (27,278,894) -
Buyback: - - - (120,268,58: - (120,268,583)
Dividends declare - - - - (432,729,04¢ (432,729,048)
Total transactions with owners recorded

directly in equity - - 27,278,894 (120,268,583) (460,007,942) (552,997,631)
Balance at 31 December 20: 13,778,392,2C 197,303,30 250,102,75 (120,268,58¢ (1,838,524,99( 12,267,004,7C

The notes on pages 8 to 49 are an integral panest financial statements.
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S.C. FONDUL PROPRIETATEA S.A.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
(all amounts are in RON unless otherwise stated)

Cash flows from operating activitie:

Proceeds from sale of equity instruments
Redemption / (acquisition) of treasury bills, net
Interest received

Dividends received (net of withholding tax)
Dividends received from associates

Realised foreign exchange losses on cash and qashakents

Collection of bank deposits maturing in more thanéhths, net

Interest received in relation with the dividend® lpayments
Other receipts

Income tax paid

Salaries and related taxes paid

Suppliers and other taxes and fees paid

Acquisition of equity investments

Year endec

13,375,649
,888,373
46,014,449

295,68
201,623,004

(303,030)

378,486,499

12,488,059
135,339
(1,109,707)
(894,909)
(52,345,240)
(769,842,368)

Year endec

31 December 201 31 December 201

(246,272,509)
141,310,236
174,979,855

(9,136,993)

930,163,463

(15,379,807)

(6,340,215)
(20,801,609)
(47,335,500)

Net cash flows from operating activitie

Cash flows from investing activitie:
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Acquisition of property and equipment

Net cash from investing activitie

Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid (including related taxes)
Acquisition of treasury shares

Cash contributions to share capital
Other contributions of shareholders

176,212,726 901,186,921
- 94,727

- (22,427)

- 72,300
(452,033)88  (1,093,273,369)

(120,268,583)

33,566,590
9,395,641

Net cash flows used in financing activitie
Net increase in cash and cash equivalel

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 2011

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash arsth ca
equivalents

(572,306,466)

(396,093,740)

(1,050,311,138)

(149,051,917)

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2(

6989186, 842,566,967
- (28,158)
297,393,15 693,486,89

Cash

Bank deposits with original maturities of less thlaree months

31 December 201 31 December 201

1,912,808 7,207,864
295,480,344 686,279,028
297,393,15 693,486,89

The notes on pages 8 to 49 are an integral panest financial statements.
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S.C. FONDUL PROPRIETATEA S.A.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
(all amounts are in RON unless otherwise stated)

1. General information

Fondul Proprietatea S.A. (referred to as “FondolpFetatea” or “the Fund”) is an undertaking for
collective investments, in the form of a closed anestment company, established in accordance
with Law 247/2005 and Government Decision 1481/2&0& registered in Bucharest on 28
December 2005. The address of the Fund’s registéfiee is 78 - 80, Buzgi Street, % Floor,
District 1, Bucharest.

The Fund undertakes its activities in accordandh laaw 247/2005 regarding the reform in property
and justice, as well as certain adjacent measasesmnended, Law 297/2004 regarding the securities
market, as amended, and Law 31/1990 regarding auiegpaas republished and amended.

In accordance with its statute, the main activitihe Fund is the management and administration of
its portfolio. The Fund undertakes other additicarad related activities, according to the regutetio
in force.

The Fund was established to allow the paymentaneshequivalent of compensations in respect of
abusive expropriations undertaken by the Romantate Suring the communist period, when
properties were not returned in kind.

Franklin Templeton Investment Management Ltd UnK&tydom Bucharest Branch (“Fund
Manager”) was appointed on 29 September 2010 asuheé Manager and Sole Director of the Fund.

Since 25 January 2011 Fondul Proprietatea hasdbésted company on the spot regulated market
managed by the Bucharest Stock Exchange in Tiehares) of the Securities Sector of the market,
under ISIN number ROFPTAACNORS with the market sghBP”.

The consolidated financial statements of the Fondhe year ended 31 December 2011 comprise the
Fund and its subsidiaries (together referred th@$Group” and individually as “Group entities”)
and the Group’s interest in associates.

2. Basis of preparation

(a) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have begraped in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by Europe#on (“IFRS”).

(b) Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been preparecedmidtorical cost basis except for equity
investments that are listed on an active market@@asury bills, which are measured at fair value.

S.C. Fondul Proprietatea S.A. Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011 8



S.C. FONDUL PROPRIETATEA S.A.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
(all amounts are in RON unless otherwise stated)

2. Basis of preparation (continued)

(c) Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Romaeiag RON), which is the Group’s functional
currency. All financial information presented in R@as been rounded to the nearest unit.

(d) Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accorzdamth International Financial Reporting
Standards requires management to make judgemstitsages and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the repodswunts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from thesarests.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewethmngoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in whiclestienates are revised and in any future periods
affected.

Information about significant areas of estimatiocertainty and critical judgements in applying
accounting policies that have the most signifiefact on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements is included in the following notes:

* Note 5 — Financial risk management;

* Note 11 — Other operating expenses;

* Note 18 — Valuation of equity investments;

* Note 20 — Recognition of deferred tax assets;
* Note 23 — Other liabilities;

* Note 25 — Contingencies.
(e) Reclassification of comparative information

The Group reclassified certain income and expersasiin the Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2010, in order ohsistent with current year presentation.

S.C. Fondul Proprietatea S.A. Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011 9



S.C. FONDUL PROPRIETATEA S.A.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
(all amounts are in RON unless otherwise stated)

3. Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have beefliegpponsistently to all periods presented in these
financial statements.

(&) Subsidiaries and associates

(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Grdtgmtrol exists when the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of atitg so as to obtain benefits from its activitiés.
assessing control, potential voting rights thatentty are exercisable are taken into account, when
applicable.

The lists of subsidiaries at 31 December 2011 setased in note 26.

Given the materiality considerations, investmentsubsidiaries are accounted for in accordance with
IAS 39Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measuremastavailable-for-sale financial assets
(see accounting policy 3 (c) below).

(i) Associates

Associates are those entities in which the Growgsignificant influence, but not control or joint
control, over the financial and operating policiEle existence of significant influence is detereain
by analysing the ownership structure of the comgmmm which the Group holds 20 percent or more
of the voting power of the investee, their artiaddésncorporation and the Group’s power to
participate in the financial and operating poli@ci$ions of the investee. The Group does not eserci
significant influence in a number of companies iah it holds between 20 and 50 percent of the
voting power, where the Group’s rights as minositreholder are protective in nature, and not
participative and where the major shareholder, gnoap of shareholders holding majority ownership
of the investee, operates without regard to thevief the Group.

Associates are accounted for using the equity naedimol are recognised initially at cost. The
consolidated financial statements include the Geoslpare of the income and expenses and equity
movements of associates, after adjustments to #igyaccounting policies with those of the Group,
from the date that significant influence commenaeatd the date that significant influence ceases.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its stt@rean equity accounted investee, the carrying
amount of that interest (including any long-termdstments) is reduced to nil and the recognition of
further losses is discontinued except to the extieat the Group has an obligation or has made
payments on behalf of the investee.

The associates at 31 December 2011 are discloserdan 9.
(i) Acquisitions from entities under common toh

The assets and liabilities acquired are recograséide carrying amounts recognised previously én th
entities’ IFRS financial statements. Any differermetween the cost of the interests received by the
Group (as determined in accordance with G.E.O. @172 see accounting policy 3(c)(i)) and the
carrying amounts of the net assets acquired igresed directly in equity.

S.C. Fondul Proprietatea S.A. Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011 10



S.C. FONDUL PROPRIETATEA S.A.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
(all amounts are in RON unless otherwise stated)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
(a) Subsidiaries and associatdsontinued)

Similarly, transfers of investments in associatesmf entities that are under the control of the
shareholder that controls the Group are accourgedtfthe date of the transfers of interests. The
investments in such associates are recogniseeé aathying amount of the net assets of the assasciat
recognised previously in the associates’ IFRS fiirstatements. Any difference between the cost of
the interests received by the Group (see accouptitigy 3(c)(i)) and the carrying amounts of the ne
assets acquired is recognised directly in equity.

(b) Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are translatemthe functional currency of the Group at excleang
rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetagtaand liabilities denominated in foreign curiesc

at the reporting date are retranslated to the ifomak currency at the exchange rate at that ddte. T
foreign currency gain or loss on monetary itenmtésdifference between amortised cost in the
functional currency at the beginning of the periadjusted for effective interest and payments durin
the period, and the amortised cost in foreign cwydranslated at the exchange rate at the ertteof t
period. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denaiith in foreign currencies that are measured it fai
value are retranslated to the functional currendhie@exchange rate at the date that the fair vahse
determined. Foreign currency differences arisingetranslation are recognised in profit or loss.

The exchange rates of the main foreign currenaiéfighed by the National Bank of Romania at 31
December 2011 were as follows: 4.3197 RON/EUR aB8% RON/USD (31 December 2010:
4.2848 RON/EUR and 3.2045 RON/USD).

(c) Financial assets and liabilities
(i) Recognition

The Group recognises financial assets and lisdslitin the date it becomes a party to the contdactua
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and liabilities are recognisetiblhyi at fair value plus any directly attributable
transaction costs, except for the investments ity gecurities whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured, which are recognised initially at cost.

The cost of equity investments which are contridutekind by the Romanian State to the Fund’s
share capital is determined in accordance wittptbeisions of Law 247/2005, as amended by
Government Emergency Ordinance (“G.E.O.”) 81/2@®&7follows:

» for the shares received at the Fund’s establishimmdd¢cember 2005, the cost is equal:

- either to the weighted average price of the ladt&ding days, provided that the last of the 90
trading days is not more than 60 days prior to 2&exnber 2005, for companies listed on a
stock exchange and whose trading volume over 8i®atrading days represented at least
0.3% of their share capital;

- or to the book value of the shareholders’ equitylaDecember 2004, according to the
statutory financial statements, multiplied by then&'s shareholding, for unlisted companies
and for listed companies whose trading volume ¢iverdast 90 trading days represented less
than 0.3% of their share capital;

S.C. Fondul Proprietatea S.A. Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011 11



S.C. FONDUL PROPRIETATEA S.A.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
(all amounts are in RON unless otherwise stated)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
(c) Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
» for the shares received in June 2007, in accordaitbeG.E.O. 81/2007, the cost is equal:

- either to the weighted average price of the lagt&ding days prior to 29 June 2007, for
companies listed on a stock exchange and whosegradlume over the last 90 trading days
represented at least 0.3% of their share capital;

- or to the book value of the shareholders’ equitylaDecember 2006, determined in
accordance with statutory financial statementstipligdd by the Fund’s shareholding, for
unlisted companies and for listed companies whaskrty volume over the last 90 trading
days represented less than 0.3% of their shar&atapi

» for the additional shares received in companiesealby the Romanian State and to which the
State has made contributions in kind, which areivec! by the Fund so as not to dilute its
shareholding in such companies, the cost for thl ks determined at the par value of the shares
received.

Mergers of portfolio companies are recognised edidite when the merger is registered at the Trade
Register.

(i) Classification
See accounting policies 3(d), (e), (f) and (g).
(i) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset whenatfiieactual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or when it transfers tigats to receive the contractual cash flows on the
financial asset in a transaction in which subsadigtall the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset are transferred. Any interestandferred financial assets that is created ometdby
the Group is recognised as a separate asset ifityliab

The Group derecognises a financial liability whisncontractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expire.

(iv) Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are set off ardrtét amount presented in the statement of
financial position when, and only when, the Groag h legal right to set off the amounts
and intends either to settle on a net basis agdbse the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Income and expenses are presented on a net bgsislen permitted by the accounting
standards, or for gains and losses arising fromoapgof similar transactions.

(v) Amortised cost measurement

The amortised cost of a financial asset or lighiitthe amount at which the financial asset duilliigy
is measured at initial recognition, minus princiggdayments, plus or minus the cumulative
amortisation using the effective interest methodmof difference between the initial amount
recognised and the maturity amount, minus any témtuéor impairment.

S.C. Fondul Proprietatea S.A. Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011 12



S.C. FONDUL PROPRIETATEA S.A.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
(all amounts are in RON unless otherwise stated)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
(c) Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(vi) Fair value measurement

Fair value is the amount for which an asset coeléjchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s lengtmsaction on the measurement date.

When available, the Group measures the fair vallaa instrument using quoted prices in an active
market for that instrument at the reporting daten@tket is regarded as active if quoted prices are
readily and regularly available and represent aetnd regularly occurring market transactions on an
arm’s length basis.

If a market for an equity security is not activee Group tries to establish fair value using a atiun
technique.

The best evidence of the fair value of a finaniciatrument at initial recognition is the transantio
price, i.e., the fair value of the consideratiovegi or received, unless the fair value of thatrimatent

is evidenced by comparison with other observabtesati market transactions in the same instrument
(i.e., without modification or repackaging) or bdas® a valuation technique whose variables include
only data from observable markets.

When transaction price provides the best evideh&aovalue at initial recognition, the financial
instrument is initially measured at the transacpdoe and any difference between this price aed th
value initially obtained from a valuation modekisbsequently recognised in profit or loss depending
on the individual facts and circumstances of thagaction but not later than when the valuation is
supported wholly by observable market data or itwesiaction is closed out.

Assets are measured at a bid price and liabiiiesmeasured at an asking price.
(vii) Identification and measurement of impainhe

At each reporting date the Group assesses whéther is objective evidence that financial asseds ar
impaired. Financial assets are impaired when dbgetvidence demonstrates that a loss event has
occurred after the initial recognition of the assetd that the loss event has an impact on thesfutu
cash flows of the asset that can be estimatedhglia

Impairment losses on assets carried at amortisgiche® measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the financial asset and thegregalue of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the asset’s original effective interest ratesdas are recognised in profit or loss and refleicteah
allowance account against the financial assetstdat on the impaired asset continues to be
recognised through the unwinding of the discourteWa subsequent event causes the amount of
impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairloss is reversed through profit or loss.

Impairment losses on equity investments carriddiavalue are recognised by transferring the
cumulative loss that has been recognised directgguity to profit or loss. The cumulative lossttisa
removed from equity and recognised in profit osl@sthe difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairmers [@®viously recognised in profit or loss. If, in a
subsequent period, the fair value of an impairadtgdnvestment increases, the recovery is
recognised directly in equity.

Impairment losses on equity investments carriemst (where their fair value cannot be reliably
measured) are measured as the difference betwe@artying amount and an estimate of present
value of future cash flows, determined using gdheaacepted valuation techniques (e.g. valuation
of equity investment using market approach).
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S.C. FONDUL PROPRIETATEA S.A.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
(all amounts are in RON unless otherwise stated)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
(c) Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Losses are recognised in profit or loss and areavetrsed.

In determining that equity investments are impaited Group considers all relevant factors, such as
significant or prolonged decline in fair value beloost, market and industry conditions, to the mixte
that they influence the recoverable amount of tlvestment, financial conditions and near-term
prospects of the issuer, including any specificessiy events that may influence the issuer’'s
operations, recent losses of the issuer, qualifiddpendent auditor’s report on the issuer's most
recent financial statements etc.

(d) Cash and deposits with banks
Cash includes notes and coins on hand and curceauats held with banks.

Deposits with banks include deposits with origimalturities of less than three months and deposits
with original maturities of more than three monéimsl less than one year.

Cash and deposits with banks are carried at aradrtigst in the statement of financial position.

Deposits with banks with original maturities ofdd¢ban three months are included as a component of
cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of tfeftav statement.

(e) Held to maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivativeetssvith fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturity that the Group has the positive intent abitity to hold to maturity, and which are not
designated as at fair value through profit or lmsas available-for-sale.

Held-to-maturity investments are carried at amedisost using the effective interest method. Any
sale or reclassification of a more than insigniftcamount of held-to-maturity investments not close
to their maturity would result in the reclassificat of all held-to-maturity investments as avaigbl
for-sale, and prevent the Group from classifyingestment securities as held-to-maturity for the
current and the following two financial years.

The Group did not classify any investments as helaaturity as at 31 December 2011 and 31
December 2010.

(f) Available-for-sale financial assets

The Group’s investments in treasury bills and iniggsecurities are classified as available-foesal
financial assets.

() Equity investments carried at fair value

Subsequent to initial recognition, equity investisgother than those described at section (ii)Jgelo
are measured at fair value and changes thereier, ththn impairment losses, are recognised directly
in equity.

When an investment is derecognised, the cumulgawue or loss in equity is transferred to profit or
loss.
(i) Equity investments carried at cost

Investments in equity securities that do not hageaed market price in an active market, and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured using aatan technique, are measured at cost, subject to
impairment testing.
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S.C. FONDUL PROPRIETATEA S.A.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
(all amounts are in RON unless otherwise stated)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
(g) Other financial assets and liabilities

Other financial assets and liabilities are measateamortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment losses (in case ohdiahassets).

(h) Property and equipment
(i) Recognition and measurement

Items of property and equipment are measured alessaccumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attraile to the acquisition of the asset.
(i) Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of propertg @quipment is recognised in the carrying amount
of the item if it is probable that the future ecomio benefits embodied within the part will flow tioe
Group and its cost can be measured reliably. Thging amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servigiqoperty and equipment are recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

(iii) Depreciation

Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss ortraight-line basis over the estimated useful ligks
each part of an item of property and equipmentdLiamot depreciated.

The estimated useful lives for the current and canapre period are as follows:

* Leasehold improvements 3 years

* IT equipment 3 years

* Vehicles 5 years

* Furniture and other equipment 5-10 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residualeshre reviewed at each reporting date.
() Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financsseds, other than deferred tax assets, are reviewed
at each reporting date to determine whether tises@y indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, then the asset’s recoverableumtnis estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carryingoamt of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the grehiisralue in use and its fair value less costsetih

In assessing value in use, the estimated fututeft@ass are discounted to their present value uaing
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current maalssessments of the time value of money and the risk
specific to the asset.

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods asessed at each reporting date for any indications
that the loss has decreased or no longer existsnpairment loss is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the eeasiole amount. An impairment loss is reversed
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amadoets not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or agaditin, if no impairment loss had been recognised.
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S.C. FONDUL PROPRIETATEA S.A.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
(all amounts are in RON unless otherwise stated)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
() Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Increat@atsts directly attributable to the issue of nadly
shares are recognised as a deduction from eqeityfrany tax effect.

(k) Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a ga&nt, the Group has a present legal or constaicti
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and ftriobable that an outflow of economic benefitd wil
be required to settle the obligation. Provisioresdatermined by discounting the expected futurb cas
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current maassessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability.

() Dividend income

Dividend income relating to listed equity investrtgeis recognised in profit or loss on the ex-
dividend date. Income distributions from unlistegiigy investments are recognised in profit or loss
as dividend income when declared.

When the Group receives or chooses to receiveatidsl in the form of additional shares rather than
cash, the dividend income is recognised for theuarhof the cash dividend alternative with the
corresponding debit treated as an additional imvest.

When bonus shares are received with no cash ditezraand only certain shareholders are granted
additional shares, the shares received are measufaid value and a corresponding amount of
dividend income is recognised. However, if all geders receive bonus shares in proportion to
their shareholdings, no dividend income is recagphigs the fair value of the Group’s interest should
be unaffected by the bonus issue.

For late dividend payments, the Group initiateslegcovery measures (conciliation, litigations)etc

The Group is entitled to charge penalties for ouerdet dividends; applying the legal penalty irgere
rate according to the legislation in force. Penailgome on dividends is recognised in the financial

year when collection is virtually certain.

Dividend income is presented gross of dividend mdtting taxes, which are recognised as income
taxes.

(m) Interest

Interest income and expense are recognised it prdfdss using the effective interest method. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exacthcdunts the estimated future cash payments angt®ece
through the expected life of the financial assdiadnility (or, where appropriate, a shorter pejital

the carrying amount of the financial asset or ligbi

Interest income relates to current accounts, depbsld with banks and treasury bills.
(n) Income from sale of securities

Gains or losses from the disposal of the finaresakts are recognised in profit or loss at the afate
derecognising of the financial assets.
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S.C. FONDUL PROPRIETATEA S.A.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
(all amounts are in RON unless otherwise stated)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
(o) Foreign currency gains and losses

Foreign currency gains and losses are reportednan laasis and include realised and unrealised
foreign exchange differences. The majority of sgaims and losses relate to the current accounts and
deposits in foreign currency held with banks.

(p) Expenses
All expenses are recognised in profit or loss oaesrual basis.
(@) Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and defeaxeurrent tax includes also dividend
withholding taxes.

Income tax expense is recognised in profit or &=ept to the extent that it relates to items
recognised directly in equity, in which case itdsognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on thebtaxiacome for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date, agdhdjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of tempaod#fgrences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposegahe amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred
tax is not recognised for the following temporaiffestences: the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities in a transaction that is not a businesmbination and that affects neither accounting no
taxable profit, and differences relating to investrs in subsidiaries and jointly controlled ensitie

the extent that it is probable that they will neterse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax is
measured at the tax rates that are expected tpgdbedto temporary differences when they reverse,
based on the laws that have been enacted or stibshaenacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are offset if there is allygenforceable right to offset current tax lidtidls and
assets, and they relate to income taxes levieldogdme tax authority on the same taxable entity, o
on different tax entities, but they intend to settrrent tax liabilities and assets on a net ladiseir
tax assets and liabilities will be realised simudtausly.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extentittis probable that future taxable profits viad
available against which the temporary differenae loa utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at
each reporting date and are reduced to the extahitis no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realised.

Additional income taxes that arise from the disttibn of dividends by the Group are recognised at
the same time as the liability to pay the relatetidnd is recognised.

The effect on deferred tax of any changes in téesris charged to profit or loss, except to themixt
that it relates to items previously charged or iteelddirectly to equity.

The applicable tax rates are 16% (standard taxaradealso, the dividend withholding tax).
(Y Employee benefits
(i) Pensions and other post retirement benefits

The Group, in the normal course of business, mpagments to the Romanian State on behalf of its
employees. All employees of the Group are memblettsecRomanian State pension plan.
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S.C. FONDUL PROPRIETATEA S.A.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
(all amounts are in RON unless otherwise stated)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
() Employee benefits (continued)

The Group does not operate any other pension schepwst retirement benefit plan and,
consequently, has no obligation in respect of merssilin addition, the Group is not obliged to pdavi
further benefits to its employees.

(i) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised as an expehse the Group is demonstrably committed,
without realistic possibility of withdrawal, to arinal detailed plan to either terminate employment
before the normal retirement date, or to providmieation benefits as a result of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy. Termination benédit voluntary redundancies are recognised as
an expense if the Group has made an offer encogagiuntary redundancy, it is probable that the
offer will be accepted, and the number of accemaman be estimated reliably.

(s) Treasury shares

The Fund recognises the treasury shares (repusbhsgn shares) at the date when the transaction
is recorded at the exchange where shares are tfaddd date); treasury shares are recorded at
acquisition cost, including brokerage fees. Thaduey shares are deducted from equity. No gain or
loss is recognized in profit or loss on the purehasle, issue or cancellation of the entity's own
equity instruments. Consideration paid or receivésrecognized directly in equity.

(t) Dividend payable

Dividends declared by the Fund are recorded adelind payable when the Fund’'s General
Shareholders Meeting approves them, as the Fuhdrnslegally obliged to pay them.

According to the provisions of the legislation orde, the Fund is allowed to cancel the rights of
shareholders to collect any dividends which haweaieed unclaimed 3 years after the date when the
respective dividend distribution commenced. Upamcediation, the Fund records the value of these
dividends as income in the Income Statement. Tmel lid not record any such income in year 2011
or in year 2010.

(u) Standards and Interpretations effective in tle current period

The following amendments to the existing standasised by the International Accounting Standards

Board and adopted by the European Union (“EU”)edfective for the current period:

- Amendments to IAS 24 “Related Party DisclosureSimplifying the disclosure requirements
for government-related entities and clarifying tedinition of a related party, adopted by the EU
on 19 July 2010 (effective for annual periods bagig on or after 1 January 2011);

* Amendments to IAS 32 “Financial Instruments: Preéagon” — Accounting for rights issues,
adopted by the EU on 23 December 2009 (effectiveafmual periods beginning on or after 1
February 2010);

* Amendments to various standards and interpretatitmprovements to IFRSs (2010)&sulting
from the annual improvement project of IFRS puldion 6 May 2010 (IFRS 1, IFRS 3, IFRS 7,
IAS 1, IAS 27, IAS 34, IFRIC 13) primarily with aiexv to removing inconsistencies and
clarifying wording, adopted by the EU on 18 Feby2011 (amendments are to be applied for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010 lorJanuary 2011 depending on
standard/interpretation);

* IFRIC 19 “Extinguishing Financial Liabilities witlEquity Instruments’ adopted by the EU on
23 July 2010 (effective for annual periods begignim or after 1 July 2010).

The adoption of these amendments to the existarmgdsrds has not led to any changes in the Group’s
accounting policies.
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S.C. FONDUL PROPRIETATEA S.A.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
(all amounts are in RON unless otherwise stated)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
(v) Standards and Interpretations issued by IASB and adpted by the EU but not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of these financialesteents the following standards, revisions and
interpretations adopted by the EU were in issuebtyet effective:

e Amendments to IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Discl@s” - Transfers of Financial Assets,
adopted by the EU on 22 November 2011 (effectiveaftnual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2011).

The Group anticipates that the adoption of themedsirds, revisions and interpretations will have no
material impact on its financial statements inglkeod of initial application.

(w) Standards and Interpretations issued by IASBut not yet adopted by the EU

At present, IFRS as adopted by the EU do not sagnifly differ from regulations adopted by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)aptdrom the following standards, amendments
to the existing standards and interpretations, lwiiere not endorsed for use as at the date of
authorisation of these financial statements:

* IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” €ffective for annual periods beginning on or aftedanuary
2015),

* IFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements{effective for annual periods beginning on or attelanuary
2013);

* |IFRS 12 “Disclosures of Involvement with Other Ee$” (effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013);

* IFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurementeffective for annual periods beginning on or aft€fanuary
2013);

* |AS 28 (revised in 2011) “Investments in Associates Joint Ventures{effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013);

* Amendments to IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Discdles” - Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities (effective for annual periodeginning on or after 1 January 2013);

* Amendments to IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” andR&7 “Financial Instruments:
Disclosures”— Mandatory Effective Date and Transition Disclesjr

* Amendments to IAS 1 “Presentation of financialestants™- Presentation of ltems of Other
Comprehensive Income (effective for annual periogiginning on or after 1 July 2012);

* Amendments to IAS 12 “Income Taxedeferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets
(effective for annual periods beginning on or aftelanuary 2012);

* Amendments to IAS 32 “Financial instruments: preagon” - Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities (effective for annual perioddeginning on or after 1 January 2014).

The Group anticipates that the adoption of themedstrds, amendments to the existing standards and
interpretations, except for IFRS 9, will have natenl impact on its financial statements in the
period of initial application.

At the same time, hedge accounting regarding thiéqgtio of financial assets and liabilities, whose
principles have not been adopted by the EU, iswstilegulated.

According to the Group’s estimates, applicatiomeflge accounting for the portfolio of financial
assets or liabilities pursuant &S 39: “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Meaement’
would not significantly impact the financial statemts, if applied as at the balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
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4. Financial risk management
The Group’s investment portfolio comprises listed anlisted equity investments.

The Group’s investing activities expose it to vaddypes of risks that are associated with the
financial instruments and markets in which it inrge3 he most important types of financial risks to
which the Group is exposed are market risk, créglktand liquidity risk.

Due to the specific nature of the Fund’s activif@fowing its establishment in December 2005,
involving clarifications on legal matters resultitgm the transfers of shares from the State, rathe
than active trading in the portfolio shares, a passsk management approach was adopted by the
Fund from its inception until the commencement ehd Manager’s contract on 29 September 2010.
In this earlier period no formal risk policies gmebcedures were in place.

Starting from 29 September 2010 the Fund Managpleimented financial risk management
procedures consistent with those applied globatli#tanklin Templeton Investments.

(@) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in marketgsiand rates, such as equity prices, interestaates
foreign exchange rates will affect the Group’s imeoor the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The objective of market risk managensto manage and control market risk exposures
within acceptable parameters, while optimisingrétarn.

() Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the value ofequity instrument will fluctuate as a result of cgas
in market prices, whether caused by factors speitifits issuer or factors affecting all instrungent
traded in the market.

Equity price risk arises from changes in the valfiavailable-for-sale equity securities and is the
primary risk impacting the Group. Diversificatioorass securities and industries, to the extent
possible given the unique investment mandate giptimary technique for mitigating equity price
risk. The Group has concentrated exposure todlePUTtilities, Oil and Gas, and Power and Gas
Utilities industries.

The companies in which the Group holds equity sgesroperate in different industries.
The Group’s exposure to industries was as follows:
31 December 201. 31 December 201

Power utilities: generatic 4,016,241,75 4,014,537,19
Oil and ga 515,110,12 481,265,75
Power and gas utilities: transport, distribution, 1,633,222.004 1.752.483.390
supply
Banks 484,034,15 48,473,75
Aluminium 236,875,32 211,868,727
Heavy industr 221,436,33 215,114,65
Infrastructur: 205,006,05 205,006,05
Postal service 84,664,38 84,664,38
Others 31,624,580 32,114,583
7,428,214,71 7,045,528,48
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

The Group has equity investments of RON 1,465,03B& 31 December 2011 (31 December 2010:
RON 1,030,293,330) which are listed on the Buch&tsck Exchange (in either the BSE or
RASDAQ segment) or the Vienna Stock Exchange. Eoh snvestments, a ten percent increase in
the BET-C, respectively ATX index at the reportoffe would have increased equity by RON
128,131,772 after tax (2010: RON 96,079,438); arakghange in the opposite direction would have
decreased equity by RON 128,131,772 after tax (2RON 96,079,438). The analysis is performed
on the same basis for 2010.

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group places cash into fixed rate bank deposg&al maturities of more than one month and
less than six months and into treasury bills.

At the reporting date the interest rate profileétaf Group’s interest-bearing financial instrumemits:

Fixed rate instruments 31 December 201. 31 December 201

Bank deposits with original maturities of less than

three montt 295,480,344 686,279,028

Bank deposits with original maturities of more than

three months and less than one - 378,486,499

Treasury bill: 195,919,673 248,021,476
491,400,01 1,312,787,00

(i) Currency risk
The Group is exposed to currency risk on curreabacts and deposits held with banks and

receivables and payables that are denominatedeigfocurrencies, i.e. Euro (EUR) and U.S. dollars
(USD), but the balances were not significant duthegreporting period.

The local currency depreciated compared to the Buwom 4.2848 RON/EUR at 31 December 2010
to 4.3197 at 31 December 2011) and compared to tBeDollar (from 3.2045 RON/USD at 31
December 2010 to 3.3393 at 31 December 2011).
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4. Financial risk management (continued)
(@) Market risk (continued)
(iii) Currency risk (continued)
The Group’s exposure to currency risk was as fatow
31 December 201

31 December 201

RON

Monetary assets

Petty cas 135 413

Current accounts with bar 1,878,99 7,193,33.

Bank deposits with original maturities of less than 295,480,227 686,279,028

three montr

Bank deposits with original maturities of more than i 378,486,499

three months and less than one

Interest accrued on bank depc 876,45 6,498,19

Treasury bill: 195,919,673 248,021,476

Dividends receivab 52,479,298 4,069,237

Other receivable 831,286 31,004
547,466,069 1,330,579,189

Monetary liabilities
Payables in respect of equity contributit -
Other liabilities (42,206,771)

(9,730,381)
(52,155,013)

(42,206,771)

(61,885,394)

505,259,29

1,268,693,79

31 December 201
EUR (in RON equivalent)
Monetary assets

31 December 201

Current accounts with bar 33,680 14,118

Bank deposits with original maturities of less than

three montt 117 -

Bank deposits with original maturities of more than

three months and less than one - -

Interest accrued on bank depc - -

Other receivable 1,727,358 -
1,761,155 14,118

Monetary liabilities

Other liabilities - (7,401,999)

- (7,401,999)

1,761,155 (7,387,881)
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4. Financial risk management (continued)
(@) Market risk (continued)
(iii) Currency risk (continued)

A ten percent strengthening of the Romanian Leirsgghe Euro at 31 December would have
increased (decreased) profit or loss by the amslumivn below. This analysis assumes that all other
variables remain constant. The analysis was peddrom the same basis for 2010.

Profit or loss 31 December 201. 31 December 201
EUR (176,116) 738,788

As at 31 December 2011, the Group held equity invests denominated in Euro with a fair value of
EUR 38,463,298 (RON 166,149,792 equivalent).

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to thedBp if counterparties to financial instruments fail
meet their contractual obligations, and arisesgadly from cash and deposits with banks, treasury
bills, dividends receivable and receivables in eespf equity contributions. The Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk from cash and deposits tathks was RON 298,269,474 at 31 December
2011 (31 December 2010: RON 1,078,471,177).

Cash and deposits are held with the following banks

31 December 201. 31 December 201
Cash and deposits held with

B.C.R. 83,686,191 291,438,440
Unicredit Tiriac Bank 71,193,790 184,267,506
BRD - Groupe Societe Generale 69,976,602 220,834,935
RBS Bank 50,081,958 -
Raiffeisen Bank 10,030,556 118,943,272
CITI Bank 8,010,500 -
ING Bank 4,950,587 3
C.E.C. 304,800 305,829
Bancpost 34,379 99,140,819
Marfin Bank 110 163,486,451
Alpha Bank - 47,624
Banca Romaneasca 3,731
Piraeus Bank 1,474
Millenium Bank 872
Volksbank 190
MKB Romexterra Bank 31
298,269,47 1,078,471,17
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i) Cash and deposits with banks

Current accounts and deposits are held with banRoimania.

The Fund Manager established a formal policy raggrdank counterparty risks and limits. The Fund
only establishes new deposits with financial ingitiins with credit ratings above investment grade.
The counterparty credit risk is also diversifiedddpcating the cash and cash equivalents across
several banks. The selection of financial institagi as deposit takers was made and the exposure
limits were decided upon based on their credihpsti

(i) Treasury bills

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk froeasury bills was RON 195,919,673 at 31
December 2011 (31 December 2010: RON 248,021,476).

As of 31 December 2011, the Group held the follgutireasury bills with discount, denominated in

RON:

Intermediary bank
ING Bank

ING Bank

ING Bank

ING Bank

ING Bank

BRD Groupe Societe
Generale

BRD Groupe Societe
Generale

ING Bank

ING Bank

BRD Groupe Societe
Generale

Total

(iii) Dividends receivable

Value as at
31 December 2011

23,933,941
25,540,620
20,653,644
20,300,790
25,315,612

3,793,652
15,989,362
20,137,755
20,085,154

20,169,144

195,919,673

Settlement No. of treasury
Date bills units
7-Sep-2011 2,500
7-Sep-2011 2,670
5-Oct-2011 2,100

12-Oct-2011 2,126
26-Oct-2011 2,658
28-Oct-2011 380
31-Oct-2011 1,600
23-Nov-2011 2,101
7-Dec-2011 2,077
16-Dec-2011 2,050

Interest

rate
6.60%
6.73%
6.46%
6.83%
6.82%

6.09%
6.05%
6.71%
6.59%

6.30%

Maturity date

5-Sep-2012

5-Sep-2012

5-Apr-2012
10-Sep-2012
24-Sep-2012

11-Jan-2012
5-Jan-2012
22-Aug-2012
6-Jul-2012

4-Apr-2012

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk fromdends receivable was RON 52,479,298 at 31

December 2011 (31 December 2010: RON 4,069,237).

Dividend income is recognised in the income statgnun the ex-dividend date (listed equity
securities) or on the date dividends are declargdised equity securities). In 2006, several
companies paid dividends for the year ended 200the¢oState authorities from which the Group
received its shareholdings at its establishmestead of making such payments to the Group, as
shareholder at the date when the dividends werlargec
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4. Financial risk management (continued)
(b) Credit risk
(iii) Dividends receivable (continued)

The Group initiated legal proceedings to recovahsdividends. At the end of 2010 and 2011, the
Group recognised impairment losses on such divslémdwhich recoverability was not certain.
(c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will nbe able to meet its financial obligations as thadly f
due. The Group’s approach to managing liquiditypiensure, as far as possible, that it will always
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilitieshen due, under both normal and stressed conditions,
without incurring unacceptable losses or riskinmége to the Group’s reputation.

The following are the residual maturities of theo@y's financial assets and financial liabilities:

Less than
month 1 to 3 months 3to 12 months No fixed maturity
31 December 2011
Financial assets
Cash and current accounts 1,912,808 - - -
Deposits with banks 240,304,320 56,052,481 - -
Treasury bills 19,783,015 - 176,136,658 -
Dividends receivable 52,479,298 - -
Equity investments - - - 7,428,214,714
Other receivables 2,558,644 - - -
317,038,085 56,052,481 176,136,658 7,428,214,714
Financial liabilities
Other liabilities 42,206,771 - - -
42,206,771 - - _
Less than . 1 to 3 months 3 to 12 months No fixed maturity
31 December 2010
Financial assets
Cash and current accounts 7,207,864 - - -
Deposits with banks 645,986,261 425,277,465 - -
Treasury bills 95,519,884 - 152,501,592 -
Dividends receivable 4,069,237 - - -
Equity investments - - - 7,045,528,488
Other receivables 31,004 - - -
752,814,250 425,277,465 152,501,592 7,045,528,488
Financial liabilities
Other liabilities 59,557,012 - - -
59,557,012 - - -
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4. Financial risk management (continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

The Group’s equity investments include unlistedusées, which are not traded in an organised
public market and generally may be consideredliopiidl. As a result, the Group may not be able to
liquidate quickly some of its investments in thesstruments in order to meet its liquidity
requirements, or to respond to specific events sscketerioration in the credit worthiness of any
particular issuer.

The Group’s listed equity securities are listedtib@ Bucharest Stock Exchange or on the Vienna
Stock Exchange. However, not all listed sharescarssidered liquid due to insufficient volumes of
transactions.

(d) Taxation risk

On 1 January 2007 Romania became a member of ttgpé&an Union (“EU”) and therefore has to
apply detailed and complex rules on the basis efBEb) Treaties, Regulations and Directives. The
Group has to conform to EU legislation from 1 Jagp007 and, therefore, it has prepared to apply
the changes arising from the EU legislation. Thesges have been implemented, however the tax
authorities have up to 5 years to audit the wagalshanges were implemented.

Interpretation of the text and practical impleméinta procedures of the newly enforced EU tax
regulations could vary, and there is a risk thataie transactions, for example, could be viewed
differently by the tax authorities as compared® Group’s treatment.

Furthermore, the Romanian Government has a numbagencies that are authorized to conduct
audits (controls) of companies operating in Romahkegese controls are similar in nature to tax audit
performed by tax authorities in many countries, foaly extend not only to tax matters but to other
legal and regulatory matters in which the applieafjency may be interested. It is likely that the
Group will continue to be subject to regular colstras new laws and regulations are issued.

(e) Operating environment

The process of risk repricing during 2007 and 2888vell as during the second part of 2011 in the
international financial markets severely affectbd performance of those markets, including the
Romanian financial market, and fostered heightengatertainty with regard to economic
developments going forward.

The ongoing global credit and liquidity crisis whicommenced in the middle of 2007 has resulted in,
among other things, lower level and difficult accés the capital market funding and lower liquidity
levels across the Romanian banking sector.

Such ongoing fears that the deteriorating finanmaditions could contribute, at a later stage to a
further retrenchment in confidence, prompted adioated effort of governments and central banks
to adopt special measures aimed at countering@ugicircle of growing risk aversion and to helping
minimise the effects of the financial crisis anabfly restoring normal market functioning. However,
political and economic turmoil in the emerging neiskis expected to continue, and this can impact
the value of the Romanian economy, and consequirlizund’s portfolio companies and its shares.

Management is unable to predict all developmenisiwtould have an impact on the Romanian
financial sector and consequently what effectnif,ahey could have on these financial statements.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

(e) Operating environment (continued)

Management is unable to reliably estimate the tffen the Group’s financial statements of any
further deterioration in the liquidity of the finaial markets, devaluation of financial assets irficed
by the illiquid credit market conditions and thensased volatility in the currency and equity mé&ske

() Operational risks

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indiréass arising from a wide variety of causes assediat
with the Group’s processes, personnel, technologyiafrastructure, and from external factors other
than credit, market and liquidity risks such asstharising from legal and regulatory requirements
and generally accepted standards of corporate miva@perational risks arise from all of the
Group’s operations.

The Group’s objective is to manage operational siskas to balance the avoidance of financial losses
and damage to the Group’s reputation with oveit effectiveness and to avoid control procedures
that restrict initiative and creativity.

(g) Capital management

Group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital bases to maintain shareholders’ confidence and to
sustain future developments.

The Group’s capital (shareholders’ equity) comwiseare capital, fair value and other reserves and
retained earnings. The shareholders’ equity was R®R67,004,703 at 31 December 2011 (31
December 2010: RON 12,055,804,356).

The Fund was not subject to externally imposedtabm@quirements.
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5. Financial assets and financial liabilities
Accounting classifications and fair values

The table below sets out the carrying amounts aind/élues of the Fund'’s financial assets and treriabilities:

Loans anc Held to Total carrying

receivables maturity  Available-for-sale Other amortised cost amount Fair value
31 December 2011
Cash and current accounts 1,912,808 - - - 1,912,808 1,912,808
Deposits with banks 296,356,801 - - - 296,356,801 296,356,801
Treasury bills - - 195,919,673 - 195,919,673 195,919,673
Dividends receivable 52,479,298 - - - 52,479,298 52,479,298
Equity investments at fair value - - 1,465,038,314 - 1,465,038,314 1,465,038,314
Equity investments at cost - - 5,963,176,400 - 5,963,176,400 Not available
Other receivables 2,558,644 - - - 2,558,644 2,558,644
Other liabilities - - - (42,206,771) (42,206,771) (42,206,771)

353,307,55 - 7,624,134,38 (42,206,771 7,935,235,16 Not available
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5. Financial assets and financial liabilities (cormued)

Loans anc Held to Total carrying

receivables maturity  Available-for-sale Other amortised cost amount Fair value
31 December 2010
Cash and current accounts 7,207,864 - - - 7,207,864 7,207,864
Deposits with banks 1,071,263,726 - - - 1,071,263,726 1,071,263,726
Treasury bills - 248,021,476 - 248,021,476 248,021,476
Dividends receivable 4,069,237 - - - 4,069,237 4,069,237
Equity investments at fair value - - 1,030,293,330 - 1,030,293,330 1,030,293,330
Equity investments at cost - - 6,015,235,159 - 6,015,235,159 Not available
Other receivables 1,901,634 - - - 1,901,634 1,901,634
Payables in respect of equ
contributions - - - (9,730,381) (9,730,381) (9,730,381)
Other liabilities - - - (59,557,012) (59,557,012) (59,557,012)

1,084,442,46 - 7,293,549,96 (69,287,39: 8,308,705,03 Not available

As at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, mansgeestimated that the dividends receivable fackvho impairment losses were recognised would
be collected within a short period of time and #fere their carrying amount approximated fair value

Payables in respect of equity contributions andtgguwestments carried at cost do not have rejialrbasurable fair values.
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6. Gross dividend income

Year endec Year endec

31 December 201 31 December 201
Romgaz S./ 106,010,598 87,829,620
Hidroelectrica S.A. 52,478,623 6,501,711
Transgaz S./ 50,768,117 22,975,352
ENEL Distributie Banat S.A. 20,161,712 -
Alro S.A. 16,024,881 13,293,652
Primcom S.A 14,276,720 1,731,351
ENEL Distributie Dobrogea S.A. 13,529,334 -
CN Aeroporturi Bucuresti S.A. 9,932,510 6,584,071
GDF Suez Energy < 9,600,000 -
Conpet S.A 6,984,786 3,810,281
Delfincom S.A 5,633,501 -
Raiffeisen Bank International A 4,735,544 -
Erste Group Bank A 3,514,050 -
BRD - Groupe Societe Generale ¢ 2,427,206 -
Aeroportul International Timisoara - Traian Vuia
S.A. 1,536,108 353,329
Transelectrica S. 1,147,845 494,761
E.ON Gaz Romania SA - 24,651,075
E.ON Gaz Distributie SA - 11,416,966
Other: 2,048,646 1,602,093

320,810,18 181,244,26

The dividend income was subject to 16% withholdasgfor Romanian equity investments and 5%
withholding tax for Austrian equity investments.dases where the relevant holding in Romanian
equity investments was larger than 10% for at le@styears prior to the dividend distribution, no
withholding tax was due.

7. Interestincome

Interest income amounting to RON 41,129,291 in 2@010: RON 131,466,209) arose from deposits
held with banks and from treasury bills.

8. Gains on disposal of equity investments

During 2011 the Fund sold its entire holdings inrfiaS.A., Familial Restaurant S.A., Laromet S.A.
and Zamur S.A, through public auctions and theemitblding in Vitacom S.A. and part of its holding
in Oil Terminal S.A. on the open market. Additidgathe Fund disposed of its holding in Comcereal
Harghita S.A. at the price approved by the Gerénalreholders Meeting of the company during the
delisting process from the Bucharest Stock Exchaage of its holding in Retizoh as a result of the
liquidation of this company. The gain on dispodahese equity investments was RON 8,799,778,
representing the difference between the proceeds dlisposals (RON 13,375,649) and the carrying
values of the equity investments as at disposal @RON 4,575,871).

There was no disposal of equity investments in 2010
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9. Net foreign exchange gains / (losses)

Year endec Year endec
31 December 201 31 December 201
Realised foreign exchange gains / (losses) 700,842 (9,136,993)
Unrealised foreign exchange gains / (losses) - (28,158)
700,84. (9,165,151
10. Other operating income
Year ended Year ended

31 December 201 31 December 201
Income from penalties levied for late payment of

dividend: 12,141,634 781,711
Other operating income 45,724 234,920
12,187,35 1,016,63.

In the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensiventiecior the year ended 31 December 2010
(comparative information), other operating incoras been reclassified froother operating
expensesaption (where, in previous year financial statet®eother operating expenses were
presented net of other operating income) into arsg@ caption, in order to be consistent with eurre
year presentation.

11. Other operating expenses

Year endec Year endec
31 December 201 31 December 201

Investment management and administration fee 32,149,759 18,305,781
National Securities Commission fee 15,594,192 5,373,143
Depositary fee 1,634,254 627,843
Third party services 3,495,314 13,555,379
Other operating expenses 1,369,782 9,626,245
54,243,30 47,488,39

S.C. Fondul Proprietatea S.A. Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011 31



S.C. FONDUL PROPRIETATEA S.A.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
(all amounts are in RON unless otherwise stated)

12. Income tax expense

Current tax expense

Year endec

31 December 201

Year endec

31 December 201

Current tax (16%) 1,752,665 11,203,603
Dividend withholding tax 3,367,831 2,195,211
5,120,496 13,398,814
Deferred tax expense
Impairment losses on equity investm (4,823,350) (4,687,917)
Provisions for restructurit 36,203 104,879
Used tax losses 138,871 (138,871)
(4,648,276) (4,721,909)
Total income tax expense 472,22( 8,676,90!

The effective tax rate used to calculate the defetax position of the Fund for the years ended 31

December 2011 and 31 December 2010 was 16% (sthtadarate).

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Year endec

31 December 201

Year endec

31 December 201

Profit for the year 1,072,302,769 655,349,067
Income tax expense 472,220 8,676,905
Profit excluding income tax 1,072,774,989 664,025,972
Income tax using the standard tax rate (16%)

171,643,998 106,244,156
Effect of:
Lower tax rate on dividend incoi (47,054,342) (26,803,869)

Presentation of share of profit in associatesphet
income tax, in Fund's financial statements

(120,937,357)

(70,454,178)

Profit appropriation to legal rese! (274,797) (583,341)
Other non-taxable incor (4,840,721) (120,012)
Non-deductible expenses (provisic 1,872,938 346,642
Other non-deductible expen 26,298 -
Provisions for restructir 36,203 -
Deductions for charitable donatic - 47,507
Total income tax expense 472,22( 8,676,90!
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12. Income tax expense (continued)

Year endec Year endec
31 December 201 31 December 201
Income tax recognised directly in equity
On equity investments carried at fair value (53,386,398) 51,178,412
(53,386,39¢ 51,178,41

13. Cash and current accounts
31 December 201. 31 December 201

Petty cas 135 413
Current accounts with bar 1,912,673 7,207,451
1,912,80: 7,207,86.

The current accounts held with banks are not plk@gecollateral for liabilities.

14. Deposits with banks

31 December 201. 31 December 201
Bank deposits with original maturities of less than
three montt 295,480,344 686,279,028
Bank deposits with original maturities of more than

three months and less than one ) 378,486,499
Interest accrued on bank depc 876,457 6,498,199
296,356,80 1,071,263,72

None of the deposits held with banks is pledgecbiiateral for liabilities.
15. Treasury bills
In 2011 and 2010, the Fund acquired discount trgdsills denominated in RON.

31 December 201. 31 December 201
Treasury bills with original maturities of less tha

19,783,015 95,519,883
three months
Treasury bills with original maturities of more tha 176,136,658 152,501,503
three months and less than one year
195,919,67 248,021,47
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16. Dividends receivable

31 December 201 31 December 201
Dividends receivable

Hidroelectrica S.£ 52,478,623 3,501,712
Romgaz S./ - 18,510,456
Transgaz S./ - 9,634,993
Complexul Energetic Rovinari S. - 567,525
Other dividends receivalt 646,840 824,392
53,125,463 33,039,078
Impairment loss allowance
Romgaz S./ - (18,510,456)
Transgaz S./ - (9,634,993)
Other dividends receivat (646,165) (824,392)
(646,165) (28,969,841)
52,479,29 4,069,23

In 2011, the Fund reversed impairment losses ddetids of RON 28,323,677 (2010: nil) following
the recovery of dividends from Romgaz S.A. (RON5618,456), Transgaz S.A. (RON 9,634,993) and
Carom - Broker de Asigurare S.A. (RON 178,228).

17. Receivables in respect of equity contributions

The receivable in respect of equity contributianthie difference between the amount due from
Ministry of Public Finance following the cancellani of the contribution corresponding to the holding
in Electromecanica Ploiesti S.A. (after the decissbthe High Court of Cassation and Justice, which
irrevocably rejected in May 2011 the request offfbhad to be registered as a shareholder of this
company), amounting to RON 21,436,245 , and thk aas equity received from Ministry of Public
Finance, not converted into share capital, amogntrRON 11,434,941, as follows:

e cash representing amounts recovered from the faxedution of World Trade Center SA in
2010, for a total amount of RON 9,395,641,

e shares contributed in kind by the State followihg increase of the share capital of Plafar
SA in 2010, for an amount of RON 334,740;

» shares contributed in kind by the State followihg increase of the share capital of
Hidroelectrica S.A. in 2011, for an amount of RONO4,560.

The Fund recorded an impairment adjustment foetiige remaining amount receivable in respect of
equity contributions as at 31 December 2011, of RON01,304 (31 December 2010: nil).
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18. Equity investments

In accordance with Law 247/2005, as amended by Bawent Emergency Ordinance 209/2005, the
Fund received, at its establishment on 28 Dece2®@3, shares in 117 companies as contribution in
kind from the Romanian State, as sole shareholder.

In June 2007, Government Emergency Ordinance 81/28fhe into force, in accordance with which:

* 32 new shareholdings were added to the Fund’sgiortis contribution in kind to its share
capital (21 shareholdings in companies alreadfiénportfolio and 11 shareholdings in companies
not previously in the portfolio);

* 39 shareholdings were removed from the Fund’s plastbind transferred back to the State.

The valuation of the shares contributed by the RoamaState in December 2005 and June 2007 was
performed in October 2007 by an independent eval&inevex S.R.L. Constanta), who followed
the valuation methodology set forth by GovernmemeEjency Ordinance 81/2007.

The value of the shareholdings, as determined dégtaluator, represents the cost of the equity
investments.

Equity investments are available-for-sale finanasdets and are carried at fair value, excephéor t
investments whose fair value cannot be reliablysue=d, which are carried at cost less impairment.

Fair values at 31 December 2011 and 31 Decemb&r\®8fe determined by reference to published
bid price quotations on the stock exchange wheaeeshare traded, where applicable.

Equity investments listed on the Bucharest Stookh&rge which are not actively traded, and unlisted
securities, are carried at cost less impairment.

At 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, for ggquiestments carried at cost, no fair values
could be determined using valuation techniques@sange of reasonable fair value estimates was
significant and the probabilities of the variousmates could not be reasonably assessed.

The movement in the carrying amounts of equity tvents is as follows:
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18. Equity investments (continued)

Equity Equity

investments investments Total equity

at fair value at cost investments
31 December 2009 663,092,758 6,042,495,466 6,705,588,224
Shares contributions in kind by State - 2,039,180 2,039,180
Acquisitions 47,335,500 - 47,335,500
Impairment loss - (29,299,487) (29,299,487)
Changes in fair value 319,865,072 - 319,865,072
31 December 201 1,030,293,330 6,015,235,159 7,045,528,489
Shares contributions in kind by St - 1,704,56! 1,704,560
Acquisitions 770,804,69 - 770,804,696
Disposal (2,394,730 (2,181,140 (4,575,870)
Write-offs - (21,436,24% (21,436,245)
Impairment los - (51,691,80¢% (51,691,805)
Reversal of impairment loss «
disposal - 21,545,871 21,545,871
Changes in fair valt (333,664,982 - (333,664,982)
31 December 2011 1,465,038,314 5,963,176,400 7,428,214,714

During 2011, the Fund increased its exposure to 8lA., Azomures S.A., BRD Groupe Societe
Generale S.A. and Conpet S.A. The Fund also adated hew holdings to its portfolio: Banca
Transilvania S.A, Erste Group Bank AG and RaiffeiBank International AG.

Additionally, the Fund received 170,456 free shamddidroelectrica SA accounted for as
contributions in kind to share capital of the Fifatithe nominal value of 10 RON/share). These free
shares were received following the applicatiorhef provisions of Government Emergency
Ordinance (“GEQ”) 81/2007. The source of the insesi share capital is the land for which the
company obtained title deeds.

During the same period the Fund sold its entirglingk in Marlin SA, Familial Restaurant S.A.,
Laromet S.A. and Zamur S.A., through public auctijat prices exceeding carrying values and its
entire holding in Vitacom S.A. and part of its hiolglin Oil Terminal S.A. on the open market. Also,
the Fund disposed of its shares held in Comceraggiita S.A. at the price approved by the General
Shareholders Meeting of the company during thestietj process from the Bucharest Stock
Exchange and its holding in Retizoh as result eflituidation of this company.

The High Court of Cassation and Justice rejecteddcably the request of the Fund to be registered
as a shareholder of Electromecanica Ploiesti SoRoWwing this irrevocable decision, the Fund issued
a decision stating that the Romanian State represday the Ministry of Public Finance did not fulfi
the obligation to transfer the shares in this camyend the holding in Electromecanica Ploiesti S.A,
amounting to RON 21,436,245, was derecognised Fand's portfolio.
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18. Equity investments (continued)

In July 2011, the merger of Electrica FurnizarenBitwania Nord S.A., Electrica Furnizare Muntenia
Nord S.A. and Electrica Furnizare Transilvania Sull. to create Electrica Furnizare S.A. was
completed by the Trade Register. The Fund holds @2#te new company.

In November 2011, the General Shareholders Meetihgsimcom S.A., Delfincom S.A. and Prestari
Servicii S.A. approved the merger of these threepganies, with Primcom S.A. as absorbing
company while Delfincom S.A. and Prestari Sen&#i. were the absorbed companies. The merger
was completed in January 2012.

The structure of the Fund’s portfolio was the faling:

31 December 201. 31 December 201

Equity investments at fair value

Transgaz S./ 394,127,877 494,093,600
BRD - Groupe Societe Generale ¢ 271,899,654 48,473,750
Alro Slatina S.A 236,875,321 211,868,727
Transelectrica S. 172,176,689 191,472,352
Raiffeisen Bank International A 94,094,574 -

Conpet S.A 89,949,706 52,092,600
Azomures S./ 79,015,589 19,420,592
Erste Group Bank A 72,055,218 -

Othel 54,843,686 12,871,709

Equity investments at cos
Hidroelectrica S./

1,465,038,314

2,764,310,929

1,030,293,330

2,762,606,369

Nuclearelectrica S., 581,846,011 581,846,011
Romgaz S./ 416,301,444 416,301,444
Complexul Energetic Turceni S. 282,299,927 282,299,927
Complexul Energetic Craiova S 250,169,153 250,169,153
Electrica Distributie Muntenia Nord S. 165,223,950 165,223,950
Complexul Energetic Rovinari S. 137,615,732 137,615,732
Aeroporturi Bucuresti S.A 131,168,262 131,168,262
E.ON Moldova Distributie S./ 131,073,011 131,073,011
Enel Distributie Muntenia S.A. 107,277,263 107,277,263
Posta Romana S. 84,664,380 84,664,380
Othel 911,226,338 964,989,656

Total equity investments

5,963,176,400

6,015,235,158

7,428,214,71

7,045,528,48

None of the equity investments is pledged as askdfor liabilities.

Fair value hierarchy

The table below analyses equity investments caatddir value, by valuation method.
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18. Equity investments (continued)
The different levels have been defined as follows:
* Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active miarkar identical assets or liabilities

* Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices includetthiw Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) ardirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

* Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that amot based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

At 31 December 2011;

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Equity investments ¢

fair value 1,465,038,314 - - 1,465,038,31
Treasury bills 195,919,673 - - 195,919,617
1,660,957,987 - - 1,660,957,9¢

At 31 December 2010:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Equity investments ¢

fair value 1,030,293,330 - - 1,030,293,3¢

Treasury bills 248,021,476 - - 248,021,4
1,278,314,806 - - 1,278,314,8(

19. Investment in associate

In accordance with G.E.O. 81/2007, the Fund reckir@m the Romanian State shareholdings
granting significant influence over OMV Petrom Sae summary of the financial information for
this associate is as follows:

Ownership
Total assets
Total liabilities
Revenues
Expenses
Profit

2011

20%
36,488,440,000
15,411,830,000
23,051,870,000
19,293,250,000
3,758,620,000

2010

20%
34,765,260,000
16,306,220,000
19,286,350,000
17,096,700,000
2,189,650,000
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19. Investment in associate (continued)

In 2011, the Group’s share of profit in its assteifor the year was RON 755,858,482 (2010: RON
440,338,615) and its share of income and expertsgymesed directly in the equity of the associate
was net expense of RON 27,826,207 (2010: net incaiRON 15,798,905). At 31 December 2011,
investments in associates represented RON 4,232 B2231 December 2010: 3,712,112,944).

The fair value of the shares held in OMV Petrom.SvAs RON 3,303,427,754 at 31 December 2011
(31 December 2010: RON 3,816,028,612).

20. Deferred tax assets

31 December 2011 31 December 201
Temporary differences deductible (taxable)

Impairment losses on equity investm 817,993,147 787,847,209
Changes in fair values of equity investm: (234,884,897) (568,549,871)
Fiscal loss carried forwa - 867,944
Provision: 59,525 285,794
583,167,775 220,451,076
Deferred tax assets at 16¢ 93,306,844 35,272,172
Total deferred tax assets 93,306,384 35,272,17

The effective tax rate used to calculate the defktax position of the Fund as at 31 December 2011
and as at 31 December 2010 was 16% (standardt&gx ra

21. Other assets

31 December 201. 31 December 201
Dividend withholding tax to be recovered from

Austrian tax authoritie 1,727,358 -
Interest receivable in relation with the dividetats

payment 470,404 750,3¢
Income tax to be recovered from the State Budget 291,912 934,8°
Prepaid expenses 28,412 31,0(
Guarantees on leased premises - 84,8
Other assets 40,558 100,5:

2,558,64. 1,901,63
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22. Payables in respect of equity contributions

The payables in respect of equity contributionsrame-interest bearing financial liabilities
representing the consideration paid (in cash &md) by the significant shareholder of the Furiee(t
Romanian State, represented by the Ministry of ilhance) with the intention of converting these
into share capital via a future share capital iasee

As of 31 December 2010, the balance of RON 9,730¢88nprised:

» cash contributions, representing amounts resutted partial recovery of receivables from World
Trade Center Bucuresti SA by the Fund, in a tatedant of RON 9,395,641, as follows: RON
8,724,887.92, EUR 148,700.76, USD 10,130.69, ansowansferred based on provisions of
G.E.O. nr. 81/2007.

e shares contributed in kind by the State in amo@iR@N 334,740.

As of 31 December 2011, the balance was nil, asethentributions partially offset the receivable in
respect of equity contributions recorded during2(see note 17).

23. Other liabilities

31 December 2011 31 December 201

Investment management and administration fees 27,179,316 17,954,157
Dividends payable 12,238,494 24,821,842
CNVM commission 1,200,075 1,268,222
Tax on dividends 1,134,222 7,859,711
Provisions 59,523 285,792
Other liabilities 454,664 7,653,080
42,266,229 59,842,80.

In April 2011, the Fund’s General Shareholders litgetipproved the distribution of a gross dividend
of RON 0.03141 per share, payable to shareholdignseffect from 30 June 2011, which represented
the distributable profits of 2010. As at 31 Decemd@ll, shareholders had collected 99% of this
dividend.

The Fund’s General Shareholders Meeting in Septe@@k approved the distribution of a gross
dividend of RON 0.0816 per share, payable to skdehs with effect from October 2010 which
represented the distributable profits of both 2808 2009. As of 31 December 2011, shareholders
had collected 99% of all dividends whose distribatstarted before 31 December 2010 (31
December 2010: 98%).

The commission due to National Securities CommisgiGNVM”) arose following the Fund’s
registration with this authority in August 2010.
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24. Shareholders’ equity
(a) Share capital

As of 31 December 2011, the authorised and issae sapital comprised 13,778,392,208 ordinary
shares at a nominal value of RON 1 per share owhath 370,823,112 shares were unpaid.

Unpaid share capital represents the net valuertdinecontributions due from the Romanian State
represented by the Ministry of Public Finance,legaholder, to the Fund that were recorded in
previous years as paid capital (based on Law 2808/20ith subsequent amendments).

During 2011 some of the paid capital has been feeanesl to the unpaid share capital as explained, as
follows:

- Romanian State represented by the Ministry of BUtilhance did not fulfil the obligation of the
transfer of 1,002,301 shares of Electromecanice$lids.A. to the Fund, according to the
provisions of G.E.0.81/2007, in amount of RON 286,235; the High Court of Cassation and
Justice irrevocably rejected in May 2011 the regoéthe Fund to be registered as a shareholder
of Electromecanica Ploiesti S.A. (transfer to udpshare capital recorded based on Fund
Manager’s Decision 24/31 May 2011);

- Romanian State represented by the Ministry of lBUtihance did not fulfil the obligation of the
transfer of 2,951,053 shares of Uzina Mecanica BastuSA to the Fund, according to the
provisions of G.E.O. 81/2007, in amount of RON 2@,890; the High Court of Cassation and
Justice irrevocably rejected in October 2011 tlyeiest of the Fund to be registered as a
shareholder of Uzina Mecanica Bucuresti S.A (transf unpaid share capital recorded based on
Fund Manager’s Decision 35/23 August 2011).

- Romanian State represented by the Ministry of leubtl not fulfil the obligation of the transfer
of 19,226,031 shares of Nuclearelectrica S.Ah&oRund, according to the provisions of Law
247/2005, in amount of RON 340,796,918 (transfamtpaid share capital recorded based on
Fund Manager’s Decision 36/23 August 2011);

- Compensation of the amounts recovered from thesébexecution of World Trade Center SA and
from the increase of share capital of Plafar SArgvious year, in amount of RON 9,730,381
(compensation recorded based on Fund Manager'sibr@4/23 August 2011);

- Compensation of the value of the 170,456 sharekdroelectrica SA received by the Fund free
of charge according to GEO 81/2007 in 2011, in amhoé RON 1,704,560 (compensation
recorded based on Fund Manager’s Decision 51/28iDker 2011).

The shares unpaid did not entitle their holderdte\or to receive dividends.

At 31 December 2010, the authorised and issuea sfagnital comprised 13,778,392,208 ordinary
shares at a nominal value of RON 1 per share,ubscsibed share capital of the Fund being recorded
as fully paid.
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24.Shareholders’ equity (continued)

(a) Share capital (continued)

By 31 December 2011, the State’s share in Fundiges capital decreased to 2.71%, out of which
2.69% was unpaid (31 December 2010: the Statere shhdund’s issued capital was 38.88%).

The movements in share capital components aremiszsbelow:

Share capita

Share capital paid in not paid in  Total share capital
31 December 2009 13,743,121,175 14,471,412 13,757,592,587
Shares contributed in kind by the State 1,704,443 i 1,704,443
Cash contributions 33,566,590 (14,471,412) 19,095,178
31 December 2010 13,778,392,208 - 13,778,392,208
Share capital reclassified as unpaid (382,258,053) 382,258,053
Unpaid share capital compensatec
State contributions 11,434,941 34,941) i
31 December 2011 13,407,569,096 370,823,112 13,778,392,208

(b) Fair value reserves on available-for-sale finacial assets

The fair value reserves of RON 197,303,309 at 3deD#er 2011 (31 December 2010: RON
477,581,893) comprise the cumulative net changlesrair value of available-for-sale financial
assets until the investments are derecognisedpaiied.
(c) Other reserves

31 December 201 31 December 201

Legal reserv 129,803,203 102,524,308
Other reserve 120,299,556 120,299,557
250,102,75 222,823,86

As required by the Romanian law, a minimum 5% efdtatutory profit for the year must be
transferred to the legal reserve. Such annualfeesgust be discontinued when the reserve equals
20% of the issued share capital. The legal ressamaot be used for distributions to shareholders. |
2011, the Fund transferred to the legal reservesraunt of RON 27,278,894 representing 5% of the
2011 statutory gross profit (in 2010: RON 23,362)37
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24.Shareholders’ equity (continued)
(d) Treasury shares

The Fund’s General Shareholders Meeting in Septe@® approved a buy-back program of up to
10% of the Fund's share capital at prices rangetgveen 0.2 - 1.5 RON, which was valid until
March 2012. The acquired shares can be canceltbtharshare capital reduced following
shareholders' approval.

The buy-back programme initiated in May 2011 wasgleted by 30 September 2011. During the
programme, 240,304,801 shares equivalent to 1.74%ed-und subscribed share capital were bought
back for a total amount of RON 120,268,583.

At the General Shareholders Meetings on 23/25 Nbeer011, the Fund Manager proposed to
cancel the treasury shares, but the proposal wesppooved due to the lack of a quorum (a quorum
of at least 50% of paid share capital is requitgdstich a decision). The proposal to cancel these
shares will be carried forward to shareholder nmggstin 2012.

(e) Dividends

The Fund’s General Shareholders Meeting approvégbiit 2011 the distribution of a gross dividend
of RON 0.03141 per share, in relation to 2010 stayuprofits.

During 2010 the Fund’s General Shareholders Meetpgyoved the distribution of a gross dividend
of RON 0.0816 per share, in relation to 2008 arf@b2atutory profits.
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25. Contingencies

As at 31 December 2011 the Fund was involved itairelitigations, either as defendant or claimant.
According to the requirements of the IAS 37 “Pramis, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets” the Fund discloses in the financial statémenly those which may have significant effects
on the Fund’s financial position or profitabilitfhe most important litigations were as follows:

1. The Fund is involved in several litigations regagddelay penalties requested from companies
which have not yet paid dividends to the Fund fieryear 2005 (some of the dividends have
since been paid to the Fund pursuant to the Fundimg the law suits). Such litigations are yet to
be resolved. During 2011 the most common pracfiteeoRomanian courts was to accept the
Fund’s claims.

The claims filed by the Fund are in compliance itk provisions of Law 31/1990 as
republished and further amended and these amadumtédsbe due and paid to the Fund. These
amounts were only be recognised as revenues wearrelsoverability becomes highly probable
(the Court rules irrevocably in Fund'’s favour).

2. There is currently a court litigation involving theind and Nuclearelectrica.

In this file the Fund has sued NuclearelectricathedVinistry of Economy and Commerce (now
the Ministry of Economy, Trade and Business Envinent) and asked the court to record the
transfer in the Nuclearelectrica’s shareholdersstegof a total of 20,077,953 shares from the
Ministry portfolio to the Fund portfolio in ordeo update the initial stake of the Fund in
Nuclearelectrica, taking into account the sharetaapcreases that took place between 1
February 2006 and 13 November 2007. The litigatvas solved at the first stage by the
Bucharest Court with the Court ruling against th@d: The Fund has appealed the decision of
the Court and the Bucharest Court of Appeal rulgarest the Fund. The Fund will file the second
appeal asking High Court of Cassation and Justigeste the final and irrevocable decision.

For safety reasons, given that the decision isbydte first court in this case is enforceable, the
Fund has blocked a total of 340,796,918 sharemnount of RON 340,796,918 being computed
based on valuation report issued in October 200anoyndependent evaluator (Finevex S.R.L.
Constanta) for the shares presumed to be owndaebiyund in Nuclearelectrica. The Fund
considered that in fact the Ministry of Public Fica has not contributed to the share capital of
the Fund with this amount. After the courts wilug an irrevocable decision regarding this case
the Fund will propose the shareholders measuresiir to solve the issue of unpaid share
capital, if it is the case.

As at 31 December 2011 the Fund owned 9.72% dftihee capital of the Nuclearelectrica, as
recorded at the Trade Register Office.

3. On the role of the courts there are many litigatistarted by the Fund against the merger plans
for creating Hidroenergetica and Electra; in mahthese cases the courts have decided to
suspend the merger and in two of them the coulesl in favour of the Fund and decided to block
the merger plan. The merger process and the cneaftiélectra and Hidroenergetica are blocked
and the Romanian Government decided to renouribesgtroject.
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25. Contingencies (continued)

In October 2011, the Romanian Government repetdqutévious decision regarding the
reorganization of the electricity generation se@borcreating Electra and Hidroenergetica and the
Government approved as an alternative plan forasgucturing of the electricity generation
sector, the creation of Complexul Energetic Oltdryianerging Complexul Energetic Turceni,
Complexul Energetic Rovinari and Complexul Enemg€&aiova with Societatea Nationala a
Lignitului Oltenia.

4. Some minority shareholders of the Fund have filadrs against the Fund with the Court
requesting the cancellation of certain resolutiointe General Shareholders Meeting.

Other contingencies of the Fund included:
1. The Fund shall receive the following amounts fréwe Romanian State:

a the amount resulted from the trading on the Ronmaoidoreign stock exchange markets of
the first 3% of Romtelecom S.A. shares;

b 20% of the amounts resulting from the privatizatdiRomtelecom S.A.;
c 9.9% of the amounts resulting from the privatisatid C.E.C. S.A.

These amounts should be recorded as paymentssfonflaid capital or as increases of the share
capital by the Romanian state once they are celleetith the approval of shareholders,
according to the legislation in force.

2 The receivables from World Trade Center Bucharest S

Section Il, Article 4 of G.E.O. 81/2007 stipulatae transfer from AVAS to the Fund of
receivables from World Trade Center Bucharest Sndounting to USD 68,814,198 (including
the original principal and related interest andgtées) on 29 June 2007.

On 1 October 2007 a reception minute was conclbeétédeen AVAS and the Fund based on
which all documents related to the receivablesfobra World Trade Center Bucharest S.A. were
transferred to the Fund.

On 4 October 2007, the Fund notified World Tradet€eBucharest S.A. regarding the cession
of the receivables. Meanwhile, the transfer wassteged with the Electronic Archive for
Pledges.

Currently, World Trade Center Bucharest S.A. isdgbgct of insolvency procedure, the next
hearing being set for 28 March 2012.

In 2008, World Trade Center Bucharest S.A. paid 28D,000 to the Fund, in 2009 USD
200,000 and in 2010 USD 110,130.69, EUR 148,706GRT1\ 8,724,887.92. No such payments
have been made to the Fund during 2011. In accoedaith G.E.O. 81/2007, these cash receipts
reduced the balance of the receivables in respacjwty contributions.

Given the uncertainties regarding their recoveitgbihe World Trade Center Bucharest S.A.
receivables were recognised on receipt basis ifrting’s financial statements.
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26. Group entities
Subsidiaries

The Fund has the following subsidiaries, all of evhare incorporated in Romania:

31 December 2011 31 December 201
Ownership interest

Alcom S.A. Timisoar 72% 72%
Carom - Broker de Asigurare S.A. Bucur 70% 70%
Comsig S.A. Sighisoa 70% 70%
Delfincom S.A. Bucures 66% 66%
Prestari Servicii S.A. Bucure 71% 71%
Primcom S.A. Bucures 79% 79%
Romplumb S.A. Baia Ma 51% 51%
Telerom Proiect S.A. Bucure 69% 69%
Zirom S.A. Giurgit 100% 100%

The total assets, liabilities, revenues and expefwsesubsidiaries are presented in the table below

Total assets Total liabilities Revenues Expenses Profif{Loss)

2011

Alcom S.A. Timisoara 12,107,800 2,631,320 2,527,571 2,328,524 153,848

Carom - Broker de Asigural

S.A. Bucuresti 1,575,086 59,972 1,201,786 1,162,946 29,129

Comsig S.A. Sighisoara 2,503,366 7,187 147,054 129,864 13,506

Delfincom S.A. Bucuresti 7,481,652 1,563,841 2,800,666 3,451,828 (651,162)
Prestari Servicii S.A

Bucuresti 1,117,042 315,563 1,944,519 782,312 1,162,207
Primcom S.A. Bucuresti 28,846,961 508,003 2,861,637 2,574,009 64,236

Romplumb S.A. Baia Mare 58,541,811 43,562,318 46,317,132 49,859,536 (3,555,684)
Telerom Proiect S.A

Bucuresti 667,841 577,909 1,483,292 1,477,625 5,667

Zirom S.A. Giurgiu 54,561,617 1,744,066 9,060,050 13,967,549 (4,907,499)

167,403,17 50,970,17 68,343,70 75,734,19 (7,685,752
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26. Group entities (continued)

Total assets  Total liabilities Revenues Expenses Profi{Loss)

201C

Alcom S.A. Timisoara 2,080,588 2,012,820 5,962,348 4,646,954 1,189,267
Carom - Broker de Asigural

S.A. Bucuresti 1,548,989 63,004 1,206,342 1,260,362 (66,608)
Comsig S.A. Sighisoara 231,947 8,531 121,386 106,099 12,062
Delfincom S.A. Bucuresti 16,093,388 222,764 3,463,287 3,445,401 5,569

Prestari Servicii S.A

Bucuresti 186,868 558,805 876,838 1,346,389 (476,001)
Primcom S.A. Bucuresti 46,697,766 344,811 3,571,942 2,269,272 1,021,729
Romplumb S.A. Baia Mare 61,122,269 47,350,536 55,235,049 55,190,881 9,986

Telerom Proiect S.A

Bucuresti 483,545 411,079 1,237,995 1,329,292 (97,747)
Zirom S.A. Giurgiu 64,217,329 6,407,451 18,770,732 16,992,522 1,769,960

192,662,68 57,379,80 90,445,91 86,587,17 3,368,21

27. Related parties
(@) Parent

The Romanian State represented by the Ministryubfi® Finance controlled the Fund during 2010,
but during 2011 its holding fell below the conttisteshold.

(b) Key management

Year endec Year endec
31 December 201 31 December 201

Salaries
Members of the Board of Nomine 535,5( 137,04
Management - 967,3¢
Members of the Supervisory Board - 706,1¢€

535,50! 1,810,56.

There were no loans to or other transactions betwe=Fund and the Board members either in 2010
orin 2011.

In February 2010 the Fund signed the Investmentagament Agreement with Franklin Templeton
Investment Management Ltd United Kingdom BuchaBeahch (“Fund Manager”) which became
effective on 29 September 2010. On this date, Firafilempleton Investment Management Ltd
United Kingdom Bucharest Branch became the Funddganand Sole Administrator of the Fund.

The transactions carried during 2011 and 2010 hetwiee Fund and Fund Manager were as follows:
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27. Related parties (continueyl

(b) Key management (continued)

Year endec Year endec
Transactions 31 December 201 31 December 201
Investment management 25,437,909 14,484,115
Administration fee 6,711,849 3,821,666
Rental expen: 98,569 23,953
Operating cost 25,364 5,014

32,273,69 18,334,74

During 2011 the Fund Manager also issued invoice®RON 1,141,266 to the Fund for expenses
incurred by the Fund Manager on its behalf. Theegenses were primarily related to promotional
activities for the Fund (investor relations). Tlehlarge of these expenses to the Fund followed the
provisions of the Investment Management Agreenamd,was subject to Board of Nominee
approval. As at 31 December 2011, the Fund oweah@aunt of RON 27,401,373 to the Fund
Manager (31 December 2010: RON 17,963,827).

28. Subsequent events
Voting rights restriction cancellation

On 23 November 2011 the Extraordinary General $izdders Meeting approved a number of
amendments to the Constitutive Act, one of the rimopbrtant being the cancellation of the
restriction of voting rights.

The new Constitutive Act with the restriction rigldancelled was approved by CNVM on 12 January
2012.

Since 13 January 2011, when the new ConstitutivdbAcame effective, the restrictions of the voting
rights related to the number of shares owned by-thal’s shareholders have been eliminated and the
principle “one paid share is equal to one votimdt'i now applies.

A new permanent legal representative of the Fund

On 23 November 2011 the Extraordinary General $iudders Meeting approved Oana Valentina
Truta as the third permanent legal representativeeoFtnd. The other two permanent legal
representatives are Grzegorz Maciej Konieczny athidiaf Cighi, appointed by shareholders on
September 2010.

The appointment is effective beginning with 19 Jag®012, the date of the registration with the
Trade Register.
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28.Subsequent events (continued)

The addendum to the Investment Management Agreement

On 23 November 2011 the Ordinary General Sharer®Meeting approved the Addendum to the
Investment Management Agreement. The change reféhe payment of Fund Manager’s fees on a
guarterly basis, starting 1 January 2012 (previotis fees were paid annually). The calculation of
the fees are based on the number shares in isdtiplied by the average market price of the Fund’s
shares calculated for the respective quarter.

The change of the paid-up capital of the Fund

Since 2 February 2012, the paid-up capital of tinedrincreased by RON 4,985,760 to RON
13,412,554,856, while its subscribed capital reedinnchanged at RON 13,778,392,208. The
increase in the paid-up capital reflects a redaaticthe unpaid share capital held by the Romanian
state due to the receipt by the Fund of 498,57fesha Hidroelectrica following a share increase by
that company relating to the value of land for vishitidroelectrica obtained title deeds.

S.C. Fondul Proprietatea S.A. Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011 49



< GAIN FROM DUR PERSPECTIVE =

Franklin Templeton Investment
Management Limited Bucharest
Branch

Premium Point

78-80 Buzesti Street, 1st District
Bucharest 011017

Romania

FONDUL

PROPRIETATEA

S.C. Fondul Proprietatea S.A
Premium Point (7th Floor)
78-80 Buzesti Street, 1st District
Bucharest 011017

Romania




	ADP6C.tmp
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2


